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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. Nature of the Action 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and 

Rodenticide Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136 et seq. (hereinafter "FIFRA), and pursuant to 

the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties 

and the RevocatiodTermination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 CFR 

Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division, 

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 (EPA). Respondent is Helm Agro 

US, Inc., 8295 Tournament Drive, Memphis, Tennessee 38125. 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 

40 CFR § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described herein 

without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or testimony, the 

making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in accordance 

with 40 CFR § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) will 

simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 



11. Preliminarv Statements 

3. The authority to take action under Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 1361(a), is vested in the 

Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority under FIFRA 

to EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 5- 14 dated May 11, 1994. 

4. Pursuant to 40 CFR § 22.5(c)(4) the following individual represents EPA in this matter and is 

authorized to receive service for EPA in this proceeding: 

Mark D. Bloeth, PTSB 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
6 1 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9013. 

5. , Respondent is Helm Agro US, Inc., 8295 Tournament Drive, Suite 310, Memphis, Tennessee 

6. Respondent is a "person" as defined by Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(s), and as such 

is subject to FIFRA and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

7. On or about October 23,2006, Respondent submitted a Notice of Arrival of Pesticides and 

Devices form (NOA) to EPA Region 6 for the release of eighty 200 kg. drums of "Cycloate 

Technical 97%" originating from Hungary (EPA Est. No. 72607-HUN-002) with an 

associated EPA Registration Number as "73637-5" and entering into the Port of New Orleans, 

Louisiana. 

8. On or about November 8,2006, the aforementioned import (Entry No. N90-06363 15-0) was 

denied entry by EPA Region 6 based on a differing percentage of active ingredient claimed on 

the NOA when compared to the accepted percentage for the product registered as EPA Reg. 
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9. Although denied by EPA Region 6, the import was inadvertently released by US Customs and 

Border Protection and was transported to the consignee of record, Odom Industries located at 

100 Chestnut Street, Pachuta, Mississippi 38347. 

10. Odom Industries is a pesticide producing establishment and is assigned EPA Est. No. 

6217 1-MS-003. 

11. On January 17, 2007, EPA Region 4 requested the Mississippi Department of Agriculture and 

Commerce (MDAC) to conduct an import inspection at Odom Industries in Pachuta, Mississippi, 

to document the importation of the eighty 200 kg. drums of "Cycloate Technical 97%". 

12. On February 12,2007, MDAC conducted the import inspection and collected documentary 

evidence to include distribution records, photographs and labeling. 

13. The import inspection revealed that the "Cycloate Technical 97%" contained a label 

identifying the product as "Ro-neet TECHNICAL, min. 97%" as well as "RO-NEET 6-E Selective 

Herbicide" (EPA Reg. No. 73637-5), an EPA registered end use formulation. 

14. "Ro-neet TECHNICAL, min. 97%" and "RO-NEET 6-E Selective Herbicide" are "pesticides" as 

defined in Section 2(u) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(u), which includes any substance or mixture 

of substances intended for preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating any pest. 

15. A "pest" is defined in Section 2(t) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(t), as any insect, rodent, 

nematode, fungus, weed, or any other form of terrestrial or aquatic plant or animal life or 

virus, bacteria, or other micro-organism (except viruses, bacteria, or other microorganisms on 

or in living man or other living animals) which the Administrator declares to be a pest under 

Section 25(c)(l) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136w(c)(l). 
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Section 2(gg) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. 5 136(gg) defines the term "distribute or sell" to include: 

distribute, sell, offer for sale, hold for distribution, hold for sale, hold for shipment, ship, 

deliver for shipment, release for shipment, or receive and (having so received) deliver or offer 

to deliver. 

Respondent "distributes or sells" pesticides as defined by Section 2(gg) of FIFRA, 

7 U.S.C. § 136(gg). 

At the time of the inspection, the imported eighty 200 kg. drums of Cycloate Technical 97% 

was not a registered pesticide with EPA. 

It is unlawful according to Section 12(a)(l)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(l)(A), for any 

person to distribute or sell to any person any pesticide that is not registered under Section 3 of 

FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136a. 

Respondent violated Section 12(a)(l)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. 5 136j(a)(l)(A), on at least one 

occasion, and is therefore subject to the assessment of civil penalties under Section 14 of 

FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 1361. 

According to FIFRA 2(q)(l)(A), 7 U.S .C. 5 136(q)(l)(A), a pesticide is misbranded if its 

labeling bears any statement, design, or graphic representation relative thereto or to its 

ingredients which is false or misleading in any particular. 

According to FIFRA 2(q)(l)(C), 7 U.S.C. 5 136(q)(l)(C), a pesticide is misbranded if it is an 

imitation of or offered for sale under the name of another pesticide. 

It is unlawful according to FIFRA 12(a)(l)(E), 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(l)(E), for any person to 

distribute or sell to any person any pesticide which is misbranded. 
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Respondent violated Section 12(a)(l)(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. 5 136j(a)(l)(E), on at least one 

occasion and is therefore subject to the assessment of civil penalties under Section 14 of 

FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. 5 1361. 

Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. 1361(a), in conjunction with the Debt Collection 

Improvement Act of 1996, authorizes the assessment of a civil penalty. 

Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. 5 1361(a)(4), requires EPA to consider the 

appropriateness of the assessed penalty to the size of business of the Respondent, the effect on 

Respondent's ability to continue in business, and the gravity of the violation. 

The EPA proposes to assess a total civil penalty of NINE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 

SIXTY DOLLARS ($9,360) against the Respondent for the above violations. Civil penalties 

under Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C.§ 1361(a), may be assessed by Administrative Order. 

111. Consent Agreement 

For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth 

above and neither admits nor denies the factual allegations. 

Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right to 

appeal the proposed final order accompanying the consent agreement. 

Respondent consents to the assessment of the penalty proposed by EPA and agrees to pay the 

civil penalty as set forth in this CAFO. 

Respondent agrees to process the eighty 200 kg. drums of Cycloate Technical 97%, for 

reformulation purposes only, into the properly EPA registered end use pesticide, "RO-NEET 6-E 

Selective Herbicide" (EPA Reg. No. 73637-5) and promptly notify EPA Region 4 (Pesticides 

and Toxic Substances Branch) when this activity is concluded. 
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32. Respondent agrees to first seek written authorization through EPA's Office of Enforcement 

and Compliance Assurance and EPA's Office of Pesticide Programs before attempting any 

future importations of Cycloate Technical, and will promptly notify EPA Region 4 (Pesticides 

and Toxic Substances Branch) if this occurs. 

33. Respondent certifies that it is in compliance with all relevant requirements of FIFRA as of the 

effective date of this CAFO. 

34. Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of the violations contained herein. 

This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United States. Other 

than as expressed herein, neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 

enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state statute, regulation 

or permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment, or to pursue 

criminal enforcement. 

35. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO. The 

parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this CAFO is 

consistent with the applicable requirements of FIFRA. 

IV. Final Order 

36. Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of NINE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXTY 

DOLLARS ($9,360) which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this 

CAFO. 

37. Respondent shall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check, payable to the 

"Treasurer, United States of America," to the following address: 



U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Cincinnati Accounting Operations 
Mellon Lockbox 37 1099M 
Pittsburgh, PA 1525 1-7099. 

The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO 

"Helm Agro US, Inc., FIFRA-04-2007-3023(b)." 

38. At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check, and a written 

statement that the payment is being made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 

persons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
6 1 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303; 

Mark D. Bloeth (PTSB) 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303; 

and 

Saundi Wilson 
Environmental Accountability Division 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303. 

39. For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled, and 

agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made pursuant to this 

CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall constitute a violation 

of this CAFO. 
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40. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts owed to 

the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a delinquent claim. 

Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date of entry of this 

CAFO, if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will also be assessed to cover 

the administrative costs, both direct and indirect, of overdue debts. In addition, a late payment 

penalty charge shall be applied on any principle amount not paid within 90 days of the due 

date. 

41. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

42. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

43. The undersigned representative of the party to this CAFO certifies that he or she is fully 

authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally binds that party to this 

CAFO. 

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. 



V. Effective Date 

44. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with the 

Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTFD TO: 

Helm Agro US, Inc. 

By: Date: 

Name: (Typed or Printed) 

Title: C a  @d/%**& (Typed or Printed) 

Protection Agency 

Date: 

Beverly H. Banister, Director 
Air, Pesticides and Toxics 

Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

4 
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this day of 2007. 

4 

Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 
Consent Agreement and Final Order, in the Matter of: Helm APJO US, Inc.. FIFRA Docket No. 
04-2007-3023(b), on the parties listed below in the manner indicated. 

For Complainant: 

Mark D. Bloeth (Via EPA's internal mail) 
PCB & Chemical Products Management Section 
U.S. EPA - Region 4,4APT-PTSB 
6 1 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8960 

Saundi Wilson (Via EPA's internal mail) 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8960. 

For Respondent: 

Mr. Bob Christian (Via Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested) 
Helm Agro US, Inc. 
8295 Tournament Drive, Suite 3 lo*:. -- 
Memphis, TN 38125. 

Date: 7-17-07 
United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center 
6 1 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8960 
(404) 562-95 1 1 



EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ORlCINATlNC OFFICE: 
(Attach a copy of the hoal order and tronsmitW M t u  to CMcndanURespondent) 

 his tom wrJ origin8t~ by: 5 avnd: iu, /y7iil 
(N-1 

.. 71i31q 
0 - 1  

0 Non-SF Judicial OrdcrlCormnt Administrrtiw OrdaKolment Agreemew 
USA0 COLLECTS FMO COLLEClS PAYMEIW 

0 SF Judicial OrdcrIcorrrmt 
DO$ COLLEClS 

0 Ovmight Billing Cast Pwlup 
sent with #O 

PAYEE. 
(N.mc d p e d  andla Codpany/Municipality making the paymad) 

The Total Dollar A d  d tk Rcaivabk: 3 
(If ins- attach scbcduk d amounts and respective due data  !ke Otbcr si& d this form) 

~ b c  cur Dockc( ~umkr: v , ~ . i r ~ \  n;q 3 ~ 9  

Tbc Site Specif~c Superfund Account Numbr: 

TO BE COMPLETED BY LOCAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT OFFICE: 

Tbc IFMS Accou~~tr Rttcirrbk CoaLrd Numkr k 

1f you h v c  any q d a q  ~ I C ~ S L  a:- 

A. JUDICIAL ORDERS: Copies d tbir form witb an atlacbed copy d h e  fronl me of Ibc 
S b O d d k ~ i k d C :  

I. ADMMSTRAW CW a t o m  w i l l  an a r * l  copy ot l* front p#$ O 



EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER M)RM 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ORIGINATING OmCF:  
(Attrch a copy d the llnrl or& a d  transmitW Mtu to DefendmnVRqodmt) 

This form W.S orlgimtcd by: 5aund; biIm 011 

(-1 
71131ul 

mate) 

0 Non-SF J u W  OddComcllt AdminiztrrlSve Order- A- 
USA0 COUECTS F M O  COUEClS PAYMENT 

PAYEE: YO Us ah 
(Name ol persod aadla Conbpany~unkipllty ndr@ tbc pa-) 

~ h e ~ a r r l ~ o l l ~ ~ m a r d d t k k e i v a b k S  
(If i s -  attach scheduk o( amounts ud respcvlve due & t a  See Otbcr side ol Uis forar) 

The Cuc Docket Numkr: WD\ %:q 36 ~349 

The Site Spcrinc Suprfund Account Numkr. 

The Designated Prqrnm Ollicc: 

7005 25 
T B COMP BY y- 

If you hove my qucstionr, plcr~r calk- 

A. JUDICIAL ORDEN: C+ d Ws form 4th m rltacbed copy d lbc front page d tbe 
rbouldkmdlcd(.: 

1. ~ T r w h i q O m o s  
Enrirommntd Ed- S d h ~  
DcprbDddJalhIU(lu7 
P.O. BOX 7611. 0- stat& 
W-RC 2 W 4  

1. -ttr- . - R q M H - M  


